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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of LAKELAND CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Lakeland Chemicals India Limited {“the
Company”}, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2023, and the statement of Profit
and toss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information .

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standatone financial statements give the Information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in india including Indian accounting standards {'Irnd AS]
specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023,
and its profit including other comprehensive income ,its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143{10) of the Companias Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India { ICAI} together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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Matter of Emphasis

Pursuant to the commencement of the corporate insolvency resolution process ('CIRF') in
September 2018, The National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated 19th September, 2022
had approved the resclution plan submitted by M/S KL Resources Lid which was approved by
96.38% of voting share of the members of the Committee of Creditors . Refer Note No 40 for
detailed explanation.

ey Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 3%, 2023, These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matiers,

1) Eapitalization of property, plant and equipment and change in useful iife

I the earlier years, prior to implementation of the NCLT approved resolution plan, the
Company was operating at a lower capacity utilization and overall maintenance activity at the
plant was curtailed due to fack of working capital. Consequently, many of the plant and
machinery remained idle / non-functional and in most cases the machinery’s operating speed
was reduced, resulting in lower efficiency and production. During the year ended March 31,
2023, the Company has incurred expenditure of ‘364 Lakhg’, largely related to capex incurred
to overhaul the existing plant and machinery in arder to improve their efficiency and increase
the capacity utilization. Judgement is involved to ensure that the aforesaid expenditure meets
the specific recognition criteria under Ind AS 16, ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’,

Further, the Company has checked its property, plant and equipment for impairment and
decided that no impairment needs to be done with respect to the same . Management has
decided to continue the carrying value of property, plant and equipment that existed on the
date of Order of NCLT September 19, 2022 as per previous GAAP.

Assessment of useful life of plant and machinery involves management judgment, technical
assessment, consideration of historical experiences, anticipated technological changes, etc.
Accordingly, the same is considered as a key audit matier. Refer Note 2{a} and 2(k)} of the
standalone financial statements.
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2} Impairment of Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities

Refer Note 40 te the standalone financial statements for the details regarding the resolution
plan implemented in the Company pursuant to a corporate insolvency resolution process
concluded during the year ended 31st March 2023 under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016. In respect of de-recognition of operational and financial creditors, difference amounting
to ‘15834.66 Lakhs’ between the carrying amount of financial fiabilities extinguished and
consideration paid, is recognised in statement of profit and loss in accordance with "Ind AS -
108" "Financial Instruments" prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
disclosed as an "Exceptional item".Refer Note 26 of the standalone financial statements.
Accounting for the effects of the resolution plan is considered by us to be a matter of most
sighificance due to fts importance to intended users’ understanding of the Financial
Statements.

3] Contingent Liabilities

Management’s judgement regarding recognition and measurement of contingent Habifities as
stated in the standalone financial statements :

*As per the approved Resolution Plan, contingent liabilities {(which have / are capable of being
crystaltized) prior to Sepl9, 2022 {“Effective Date”) stand extinguished. Furthermore, the
Resolution Plan, among other matters, provide that except to the extent of the amount
payable to the relevant Operational Creditors in accordance with the Resolution Plan, all
liabilities of the Campany relating in any manner to the period prior to the Effective Date,
immediately, irrevocably and tnconditionally stand fully and finally discharged and settled and
there being no further claims whatsoever, and all the rights of the Operational Creditors and
Other Creditors to invoke or enforce the same stands waived off. It is provided that any and ail
legal proceedings initiated before any forum by or on behalf of any Operational Creditor
(including Governmental Authorities) or any Other Creditors to enforce any rights or claims
against the Company also stands extinguished. Further, in terms of the Resoiution Plan, no
Governmental Authority has any further rights or claims against the Company, in respect of
the period prior to the Effective Date and / or in respect of the amounts written off and all
fegal proceedings initiated before any forum by or on behalf of any Operational Creditor
{including Governmental Authorities) or any Other Creditors, to enforce any rights or claims
against the Company wilt immediately, irrevocably and unconditionally stand withdrawn,
abated, settled and/or extinguished. Further, the Operational Creditors of the Company
(including Governmental Authorities} and Other Creditors will have no further rights or claims
against the Company in respect of any Hability for period pricr to the Effective Date, and all
such claims shall immediately, rrevocably and unconditionally stand extinguished.
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Other information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is o read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwice appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial positien, financial performance,including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, thereof,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent: and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controis, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the a2ccdracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud oy erear.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the ability of the company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
management and Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic afternative but to do so. The Board of Directors of the company are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process

i
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high fevel of
assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Jnd AS financizs!
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain ar understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedurses that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that 3 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to meodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or COHdJllQl’is
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financia!
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and {if} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standaione financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters inour  auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regufatory Requirerments

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of [ndia in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Urder, {0 the extent applicable.
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2. Asrequired by Section 143{3} of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the boaks of account.

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting
standards) Rules 2015,

{e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 315 March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2} of the Act;

{f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controfs, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

(g] In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

{h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Ruie 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us by the management:

k. Pursuant to the corporate insolvency resclution process{“CIRP”) under the Insolvency
and Bankvuptey Code, 2016 which was initiated against the Company on 23rd
September 2019 and in terms of the approved resolution plan vide an Order of the
National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT") dated September 19, 2022,, all the pre
existing contingent liabilities have been extinguished together with the associated
pending litigations and hence, as per management, there is nothing to be disclosed in
its financial statements
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ii. The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses refating to long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

lii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. {3} The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and helief,
as disclosed in additional regulatory information to the financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”}, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in additional regulatory information to the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities {(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasona ble and appropriate

- in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to belirve that
the representations under sub clause (i) and {ii} of Rule 11{e}, as provided under (a) & (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.
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V. Since the proviso to rule 3(1) of the companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
for the company w.e.f. 19 Aprit 2023, therefore, reporting under rule i1{g) is not
applicable for the financial year ending on 31* March 2023 in respect of use of
accounting software for maintaining books of accounts with requisite audit trail facility.

For D P Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accoflintap
FRN:100068W

’?/
B.P. ﬂ@rwa%
Proprietar
M.Ng; 035500
UDIN: 23035500BGQRIND2ZG2
Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.05.2023
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the Companies {Auditer’s Repert) Order, 2020
(“the Order’} issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11} of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“"the Act”} as referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that;

(a} (i) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE}.

(i) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of tangible
assets.

{b]  The Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE) were physicafly verified during the year by
the Management in accordance with regular program of verification, which in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the PPE at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanations given to us na material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

{c}  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name of the company.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, there is no
revaluation of PPE or intangible asset or both dusing the year. Pursuant to CIRP
precess , the company has continued the carrying value of its PPE.

{e}  According to the informatien and explanations given by the management, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

a} The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonabie intervals
during the vear, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. As informed to us, any discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such verification.

b} The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets of the company. The quarterly returns / statement filed by the company
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with such banks /firancial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
company. Refer Note No.31 of the standajone financial statements.

il According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made
investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, LLP or any other parties.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{jii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon. :

v, In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year, the Company has not granted any loan, made any investment or provided any
guarantees to any person specified under section 185 and section 186of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3{iv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public.

Vi, The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, for any services rendered by the Company hence paragraph
3{vi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company. :

ik According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,

{a} The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State insurance, Income-tax, Goods and
Service Tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate
autheorities.

(bi According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Empioyees’ State insurance, Income-Tax,
Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues, were not outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
pavable.

{c} As stated in Note 32.2 to the standalone financial statements , pursuant to the NCLT
approved resolution plan , there are no dues of income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
duty of customs etc that has not been deposited on account of any disputes as on
31st March, 2023.

Vil According to the information and explanation gives to us, company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of accounts, in the fax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, as income during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement 1o report on clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

IX. &) The company has not defauited in repayment of loans and borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the vear . o
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k) The Company has not been declared wilful defauiter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority,

¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has utilised the money obtained by way of Term Loans during the year for the purposes for
which they were obtained.

d} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the vear for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obfigations of its
subsidiaries.

f} The company has not raised loans during the vear on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary , assaciate or joint venture, Hence clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

X (a} The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3{x}{a} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

{b) During the year, the company has issued optionally convertible debentures of Rs 27.98 crs
as per the approved resolution Plan.

Xk Based upon the audit procedures performed by us, to the hest of our knowledge and belief
and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no fraud
by the company or fraud on the company has been noticed or reparted during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause {xi) (a) and (b) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

According to the information & explanations and representation made by the management,
no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year {and upto the date of the
report) by the company.

X, In our apinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

X1, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and

records produced before us, the transactions with the refated parties are in comgliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details thereof have been disclosed in
Note No: 23, notes to the financial statements, as required by the appiicable accounting
standards,
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The company has internal audit system which commensurate with its size and nature of the

business and there is not requirement of internal auditor on the company

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and
recards produced before us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act,
2013 and hence requirement to report on clause 3{xv} of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(a} In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the Company
is net required to be registered under section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934,

(b} The company has not conducted any non-banking financial or housing financing activities
without a valid certificate of registration (CoR) from the RB! as per RBI Act, 1934

{c} The company is not a core investment company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by RBI

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
company has not incurred cash losses in the financial vear and in the immediately preceding
financial year

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, accordingly,
provisions of clause (xviii} of the order are not applicable to the company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial iabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabifities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guaraniee nor any assurance that all liabilities falting due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fali due. o
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XX, in our opinion and on the basis of information and explanatians given to us, the provision of

section 135 (Corporate social responsibility) is not applicable on the company. Accordingly,
clause 3{xx) of the order is not applicable to the company.

For D P Agarwal& Co. e
e T A
. 3
jQ. J— ;ﬁia

%
Mikig g, !&}é

/
D.P. Agarwal

Proprietor

M.No: 035500

UDIN: 23035500BGORING262
Place: Mumbai

Date: 24.05.2043
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"ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause { i } of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act,2013{" the Act )

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lakeland Chemicals india
Limited(“the Company”} as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Sinancial Reporting
issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India .These responsibitities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiaf controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controfs over the
tinancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controils, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate interna! financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
Internal financial controis over financial reporting Included obtaining an understanding of interha

financiat controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materia!l weakness exists, and
[t
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testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financiai reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control ever financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

{1} Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2} Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorities of
management and directors of the company; and

{3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of the internal financiai controls over financial reporting,
inctuding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materiat
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to futuse periads are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controf over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion
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in our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financlal statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for
internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Naote on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL.

For DP Agarwal& Co.
Chartered Accou
FRN:100068W

P2t
B.P. Agarwal
Proprietor
M~No: 035500
UBIN: 23035500BGORING262
Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.05.2023
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS OHBIAY LIWITER
CIN U241 1OMHZO04PLC 146040
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCH 2023
{(Amaunt in Lakhis)

SI, | Particuiars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
Na. Note 2023 2022 2021
Mo,
ASSETS
1| Mon-current Assets
{a} Property, Plant and Equipment Za 2,763.93 3,338.9¢6 3,924.30
{8} {apitat work-in-progress b 364.08
{c} Financial Assets
{f) Cthers 3 31.63 - -
(d} Deferred tax assets {net) 4 383.51 383.51 334.96
2 | Current Assets
{a) inventories 5 406.04 49 .85 49,85
) Financial Asseis
{i) Trade receivabies 6 24(1.60 56.91 443,82
(i} Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 293.51 18.55 73,84
{iii} Others 8 0.03 13.21 16.96
{c) Cuwrrent Tax Assets {Net) .26 - -
{d) Other current assets g 152,24 1,026.72 1,026.76
TOTAL ASSETS: 4,635,83 4,887.70 5,860.48
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQuity
{a} Equity Share capital 10 1,000.00 461 83 461,83
{ts) Other Equity
{11 Reserve and Surplus 1 -246.78 16,511, 76 -15,820.50
2 | LIABILITIES
Noa-current Liabikities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 12 2,421.69 6,094.77 6,094.77
ih) Other non-curvent tabilities 13 3.92 - -
Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 14 757.45 10,224.61 10,224, 61
{ii) Trade payables 15
a) dues of micro enterprises and smali -
enterprses
) dues of creditors other than micra 567,28 1,507.32 3,822,714

enterprises and small enterprises
{iti} Other financial liabilities (other than - -
thase specified in ftem (<)

{b} Other current liabititiss 16 132,27 1,030.52 396,36
(<) Current Tax Liahilities {Net) 17 - 80.42 80.51

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,635.83 4,887.70 5,860 48
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes to the financial

statements
e{;;ch d

2 to42

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

{‘ o . ."Xevo_ WA

Hemant Jain Harshvardhan

As per our report even
For D.P. Agarwat &Ci
Charﬂgred Accountarits
Firm Ho.100068W A

L
R - Bathra
D.P. AGAR\;{_AB/ Director Director
(Proprietor) N 08878434 DI 08533731
Wembership No.035500 ,j\
UDIN:Z 3035000 g RN 262 e :}/
Place: Mumbai Sanjiv Goyal

Cate: 24-May-2023 Chief Financiai Officer




LAKELAND CHEMICALS {INDIAF LIMITED
CIN : UZ4110MHZO04PLC 146040
STATEMENT OF PROFTT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ERNDED 315T MARCH 2073

{Amount in Lakhs)

&1, . Mote As at 31st As at 31st
Ho. | aTHeulars No. | #March2023 | March 2022
| | Revenue From Qperations 18 224,97 -5.71
it | Other Income 9 2.64 1.47
i} Total income {1 + 11} 227.62 -4.24
¥ | EXPENSES
Cosi of Materials Consumed 20 10.00 25.57
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 21 562.60 -
Changes in inventaries of finished goods, Stock-in - 22 -406.04 -
Trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 23 6.81 21.68
Finance costs 24 0.95 -
Depreciation and amortization expense i 575.42 585.34
Other expenses 25 24.09 102.98
: . ' Total expenses (V) 773,75, 735.57
Vv | Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (- 1¥) -346.14 -739.81
Vi | Exceptional items 6 15,834.66 -
1 Profit/(koss) before tax from continuing operations (Y- 15,288,52 -F319.81
ViE Vi) _ . _
VI | Tax expense:
{1} Current fax -
{2} Deferraed tax -48.55
| Profit (Loss) for the period-from continuing 1%, 288.52 C 691,26
% Foperations (Vil-vitl) - ' -
¥ | Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations -
XI - | Profit/(loss) far the period (1X+X) 15,288.52 -691,26
Xt B Other Comprehensive Income - -
[ Total Comprehensive income for the period (Xt+X!I) ~ 15,288.52 -691.26
XIH §{Comprising: Profit’ (Lcss} a,nd Other. Comprehenswe o ' : ’ :
income for the period) - '
Xiv § Earnings per equity share:
{iy Basic 27 221.45 14,97
{ii} Diluted 221.45 -14.97
Significant Accounting Policies i
The accompanying notes te the financial statements 2 to 42

As per our report of even date attached
For D.P.Agarwal

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

b
Y

o
. A/
"w(/ / Hemant Jaln  Harshvardhan
. Bothra
D.P. AGARWAL Director Director

{Proprietor}
Membership No 035500

DIN 05878484

UDIN:2 303 50 0@ GORTNAZE . o ‘f/
9%
Place: Mumbai Sanjiv Goyal

Date: 24-May-2023

DN 08533731

Chief Financial Officer



EAKELAMD CHEMICALS [(IMDIAY LEAITED
CiM . U241 10MHIDGAPLC 146040
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March 2032
{Amount in Lafihs}

Figures for the year Fiyures for the year
5. MO, {PARTICULARS ended snded
X1st March 2023 31st March 70722
1 [{a) Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Het Prafil Before Taxation 19,288,592 73981
Add: adjustenent for non cash ilems :
Depreciation, amortizaticn and impairment 75,42 G85.34
Exceptional flems 15,534,460 -
1928 ~154,47
Adg: Adjustment for ather Gems
Finance Cost 0.95 M
ingerast INcome - -GL80
Operating Profit Bafore Working Capflal Changes 3023 155,37
{b} Adpusteents for Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustments for (Increase)/Becrease in Operating Aszets:
Trade Recewables {Current) -240,60 386,
Inventonies -395.64
(Other Financial Assets -31.66 -
Gther {urrent Assets 175,43 44 B3
~E14.10 1EG. 67
(¢} Adjustments for {Increase)fDecrease in Operating Liabilitles:
Trade Payables 967.28 -3115.3¢
Dther Currentfton Current Lizkilities -550.57 3396
Shext -Term Barrowings 1,498.5% -
Cash Generated from Gperations 3,395.94 -94.71
[irect Taxes Paid/Received -48.54
Cazh Flow from Operating Activities (A} -3 29594 -46.19
7 §Casn from Invastment Activities -
Capital Trpenditure on Fited Assers, including Capital Advances 364,47
interest kacome {Revenue) - 190
Net Cash Generated from £ (used in) Investing Activities (B} -364.47 .94
3 |Cush Flow from Financing Activities -
Praceeds from {ssuance of share ¢apltal (including share application money} 1,000.00
Praceeds from Long Term Borrowings 2,936.32 -
Finance Cost -0.95 -
Het Cash Generated from / (used In) Financeing Activities (C} 3,935.37
Het IncreaseliDecrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 274,96 -45.29
Het Change in cash b Cash equivatents 174,96 45,29
Cash & Cash: Equivalent st the beginning of the Year 18,55 63.84
Cash & Cash Equivalant at the end of yoar 793.51 18,55
Components of cash and cash equivatents
- Cash and Cheques in Hand - i3]
Datance wilh Scheduted Baniks
- On Curvent Account 293,54 18.3%

Notes = "_""\
The abave Cash Flow Statement has {')‘ceo\ere@undef the indirect method 5ol aul as per ind-AS-7 issued by The Institute of Chantcred Accountants of Indiz ang
notified uss 133 of the Companies Adg, 2075 : -

! 3\ r e

A5 per our report of even date attaghed
Far D.¥.Agarwal [t Co.

Charigred Accountants /_/
Firm Hao, 100068W E

o

Far & on Behatfl of Boarn of Mreciors

/—i‘\ S ; LIVRS A
S |

l:lemant Jain Harshvardhan Bothra
WAL < P Direcior Director
{Proprietor) BiH O8R754584 DM 0B5337 3

Membership No.035500 P

Ul g W}/

2230 35800LKORING 26 4

Flace: Mombal \Sanji\f Govyal

Date: 2d-Kay-2023 Chief Financial Dfficer




LAKELAND CHEMICARS (INDHEA) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGED M EQUITY A3 AT 3957 MARCH 2002

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

8.

Particelars Amount

As at 15t April 2021 461,83 |
"Add! issued Fresh Equily Yhare capitai T -

AS at 31 March 2D21 451.83

Particufars

A5 8t 31 March 1022

Change in equ‘ity share :apitai

e 1,000.60
Less: Extmgusihment ar Reduction of Share -461 .83
Capital*
AS at 31 March 1023 1,0G0.00

*Fafor Hote below
BALANCE AF AT 315t MARTH 2021

Balance at the beginning of the curreni

Changes in Equity

Restated balance at the

Changes in equity share capltal during the

Balance at the

reporting pedod Share Capital due o | baginning of the current - curraat year and of the
. . pries periad-arters ‘reparting period i current
C o L - fssued Fresh Equily  -“Extingusihment d¢ " reperting
Share capital Boduction of Share pariod
CCapital
451.83 " - 1,004.00 [461.83) 100008
“Refer Hote befmpe
BALANCE AS AT Jist MARCH 2022
Balance at tha Heginning of the current Changes In Equity  |-Restated balance at thef Changes in eguity share cepital during the | -Balance al'the
reporling period Share Capltal due ta §keginning of the curront cufrent year " end of tha
prior perled esTors reporting pediod curvenk
reporting
perod
461.83 " - - 461.83
BALANCE AS AT 1st AFRIL 2021
[Balance at the begloning of Ihe curvent Changes in Equity [ R i bak atthe| Changes in equity share capital during the i Balance at the
reporing poasiod Share Capital dug to beginnmg of the current, cuiment year wnd of the
prior period acrors reporting peioag eurrant
. Toporting
peariod
A61.82 - - - 461.83

OTHER EQUITY

STATEMERT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FERIOD EMDED 3457 MARCH 2023

PARTICULARS

Reservas and Surplus

Tatal Amount

Secutity Premium

Lapital Reserve

Rekained Earnings

._ Profit/(Loes) for the yeat

Batance as at 01s¢ Apr{i 2022

988,98

-17,500.72

_15,268.52

Changes in zccounting pﬂ‘ic}"l;;[; Fiﬁ;uﬁé}"iod
BITOrS

Addi Amount Transfer to Capital Reserve .

Add: Amount Trans o to Optionat C(:lrwertli:v!‘z=
Debenture {Equity)

Add: Due to reduction in face vatue of Shares

Restated balance at the Deginning;f"‘..:ﬁ; o
reporiing period

T eBR.ge

T4g1.83

""" 514.63

61,53

Total Ccmprehensive Income for the year

1A%0TRE

Dividends

1,697 57

Transfer to Eé't_a_!vﬁvéa"('e_arMngs

Balance as og st March 2023

1,450.74

-1,697.57




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUTY FOR THE PERIOD ERDED 3157 MARCH 2022

FARTICUE A RS Reserves and Surplus Total
Security Premium Retained Eamings
Balance as af QTsL April 2021 Q8596 -16,809.46 -5,820.54
itf{[oss) for the yeSr R -671.26 69176 |
£hanges in accounting policy or priat pericd - T :
gerors - —————
"' Restated balance ot the beginning of the - R T
raporting periad
Total Comprehensive income For the yvear 988.96 -i7,500.71 -i6,541.70
S ens! g - - . - :
Transfer to retained aarnings - o . T
Balance as on 31st March 2022 F08.96 -1 7, 500,71 -16,511.76
STATEMEHT OF CHANGES tH EQUITY FOR THE PERICD ENDED 15T APRIL 2021
PARTICULARS Reserves ang Surplus Tatal
Security Premium Retained Earnings -
Balance as at Qfst Aprit20a 4 938,956 -15,893.81 -14,504 .85
Prafit/{Loss) for the year » o T -3314.95 -231.95
Changes In accounting pollcy or prior periad - 16,11 16.31
arrars
Reslated balance 4t the beginning of the - o -
reporting period
Total Comprehensive Incame for the year 988.96 -16,809.46 -13,820,30
W kel S - e :
|~ Transier to retained eamingsﬁ i} - - “
Baiance as an 3ist March 2021 988.9¢ -14&,809.46 -12,820.50

“Note: Pursuant to the corporate insolvency resslution process{"CIRF") under the Insstvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2018
which was inftiated agetnst the Company on 23rd September 201% and In terms of the approved resofution plan vide an
trder of the Hational Campany Law Tribunal ("NCLT™) dated September 12, 2022, the equity share capital of the esrstwhile
promaters have been extinguished and frash equily capitat of Re 10,00,00,000 has heen introduced consists of 1,00,00,000

aquity share capital of Rs_ 10 each,

45 per our repert of gren d
For O_F_ Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Mo. imw
/nt//

o

0P, AGARWAL
{Proprietaf
Membership Mo, 035500
LIDIN:

Place: Mumbal
Date: 24-May-2023

Far & on behalf of Soard of Directors

”i.- ,f”J *: . ey ,a} 4\}_{.1‘»;\

Hemant Jain Harshvardhac Bothra
Director Director
Ot DBETH4B4 DM 08533731

Sanj&/ Gayal
Chief Financial Officer



LAKELAND CHEMICALS (NDIA) LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES
1.4 Corporate information

| akeland Chemicals India Limited is & Public Company domiciled in India and incarporated under the
Company's Act. The Company's principle business is manufacturing of Specialty Chemicals.

1.2 Basis of Preparation
a)  Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are separate financial statements and have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind-AS) nofified under the Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (indian accounting standards}  as
amendment from time to time.

b) Basis of Measurement

The financial staterments have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an
accrual basis except for the following which have been vaiued at Fair value as required under
ind-AS instead of historical cost.

1. Defined benefit Plan-Gratuity

ii. Certain Financial assefs and Habilities

il Assets held for sale-measured at lower of cost or fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to self an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. !n estimating the
fair value of an assets or fiability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the assels
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics inta account when pricing the
assets or liability at the measurement daie.

c) Use of Estimates and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management io make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assels and liabilities at the date of
financial staternents and the reported amount of income and expenses. Examples of such
estimates include estimates of future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans and
estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment actual results may differ from these
estimates.

) Useful life of Property, Plant and equipment (PPE): The company depreciates PPEona
Written Down Value (WDV) over estimated useful lives of the assets. The charge in respect
of periodic depreciation is derived based on an estimate of an assel's expected useful life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as weil as anticipation of future events, which may impact their
lives, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful life is reviewed at least annuatly.

ii. Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the
defined benefit obligations are based orﬁlg&c;uariai vajuation using the projected unit credit
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIA) LINITED
Motes fo the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

method. An actuarial valugtion involves making various assumptions thal may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and moriality rates.

Under the projected unit credit (PFUC) method a projected accrued benefit is caiculated at the
beginning of the period and again at the end of the period for each benefit that wilt accrue for
1l active members of the plan. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

‘Usefut fife of Intangible assets: Intangible assets are recognised when 1t is probable that
the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and
the cost of the asset wilt flow fo the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured
refiably.

The Company amartizes intangible assets on a Written Down Value (WDV) over estimated
useful lives of the assets. The useful life is Estimated based on a number of factors including
the effects of cbsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors such as the
stability of the industry and known technological advances and the jsvel of maintenance
expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assets. The
estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.

Expected credit losses on financial assets: The company provides for impairment
provisions of trade receivables based on assumptions about risk of defaull and expecied
timing of cofiection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumpticns and selecting
the inputs to the expected credit loss calculation based on the Company’'s history of
collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Leases:

ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the noncancelable period for which the lessee has the
right to use an underlying asset including optional periods, when an enlity is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend {or not to terminate) a lease. The Company considers
all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee to
exercise the option when determining the tease term. The option {0 extend the lease term is
included in the iease term, if it is reasonably certain that the lessee would exercise the option.
The Company reassesses the option when significant events or changes in circumstances
accur that are within the control of the lessee.

fmpairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill: As af the end of each
accounting year. the Company reviews the carrying amounis of its PPE, Invesiment properly
investments and Intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment
property, investments and intangible assets are tested for impairment o as to determine the
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with ndefinite ide are tested for
impairment each year,

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverabie
amount.
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS {INDIA) LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results Coud
differ due to changes in these estimates and difference between the actual result and the
estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known /materiatize.

1.3 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents refers to the line item on the balance sheet that reports the value of a
company’s assets that are cash or can be converted into cash Immediately. Cash equivalents
include bank accounts and marketable securities such as commercial paper and shorf-term
government bonds. Cash equivalents have maturities of three months or less.

1.4  Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to
the ordinary activities of the Company, is such that its disclosure improves an understanding of
the performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item
and accordingly disclosed in the Nates to Accounts.

Pursuant to the corporate insolvency resolution process("CIRP") under the insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which was initiated against the Company on 23rd September 2012 and in
terms of the approved resolution plan vide an Order of the National Company Law Tribuna
{"NCLT") dated September 12, 2022, the fiability towards Secured and Unsecured financial
creditors (including interest) Trade receivable, Other current and non-current asseats and liabifities
which is Jong outstanding and feported as cpening balance for the year has been made
transferred to Exceptionatl ltem.

1.5  iovestments

1) Investmenis in Subsidiaries & Associates
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for at cost less impairment loss, if any.

2) Qther Investments
All other investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognized in Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income.

1.6 Inventories

ltems of inventories are valued at lower of specific cost or net estimated realizable value after
providing for obsolescence, if any. Inventory of raw materials lying at factory are valued on FiFO
Basis,

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of burchase, cost of transport, cost of conversion and other
costs inciuding manufacturing /other overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective
present iocation and condition. {nter-unit goads transfers are valued at lower of cost/ net
estimaled realizable vaive.

Non duty paid goods lying at port has been valued without Basic Custom Duty due to uncertainty
of quantum of material to be sold agains! transfer of ownership/ duty paid.




1.7

1.8

a)

P)
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L AKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIA) LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the yvear ended March 31, 2023

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement is reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {ivss) beiore tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or
future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the company are segregated based on the available information.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation / Amortization

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of asset includes the following:

Cost directiy attributable to the acquisition of the assets

Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the indirect
construction cost to the extent to which  the expenditure is directly refated to construction of is
incidental thereto.

Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site on
which it is located if recognition criteria are mat.

Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects are capitalised if the recognition criteria are met.

Upon sale of assets cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements and the resultant gains or losses are recagnized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that is yet to be delivered
by the supplier / vendor at the reporting date is classified as capital advance, and

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each
reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before
such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress.

The estimated usefui lives of assels are as follows |

Particular The estimated usefu:
lives of asseis
Factory Buildings & Site | 60
Development
[ Plant and Machinery 12
Furpiture & Fixture 10
Cffice Equipments 5
Computers Equipments 3
Depreciation T
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIA) LIMITED
hNotes to the Financial Statermentis
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment is provided on Written Down Valug {WDV} over
the useful life of the assets as specified in Schedule It of the Companies Act, 2013

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as ai 1st Aprit, 2021, measured as per the previous
GAAP . and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and aquipment.

1.9 [Investment Property

Property that is heid for long term rental yieids or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the company, is classified as investment property, investment Property is measured
at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less
depreciation and impairment, if any.

1.40 Iintangible Assets and Amortisation

intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumitiated
amortization/ depreciation and impairment loss, if any, Thecost comprises of purchase price,
borrowing costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for
the interned use.

Cost of items of intangible assets not ready for intended use as on the balance sheet date is
disciosed as intangible assets under deveiocpment.

intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful ife. The esiimated useful iife and
amoartization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of
any change in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

1.14 impairment of non-financial assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assels exceeds its recoverable value
and impairment lass is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss inn the year in which an asset is
ideniified as impaired. At each reporting date company assesses the estimate amount of
impairment loss. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is teversed if there
has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount and such losses either no ionger exists
or has decreased. Reversal of impaired loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. In
such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

i the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than #ts carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU} is reduced 10 iis recoverable amount. An impairment
inss is recognized in ihe statement of profit and loss.

1.12 Revenue Recognition




LAKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIAY LIMITED
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of traded goods, manufactured goods and
related services,

Efiective 01 April 2021, the Company has adopted indian Accounting Standard 115 {Ind AS 115}
JRevenue from contracts with customers'.

There is no effect on adoption of Ind-AS 115, Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of
performance obligation which is treated as satisfied upon transter of control of promised products
or services to customers on output method in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects {o receive in exchange for those products or services.

On each reporting date expected credit loss on receivables is measured and accounted for as per
ind-AS 109.

The Company does not expect to have any confracts where the period between the transfer of
the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds ong year.
As a conseguence,it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time vaiue of morey.
Revenue from sale of products and services are recognized at a time on which the performance
obligation is satisfied.

Qther operating revenue — Service Charges

Company renders services only incidental to its primary activity that is trading of goods and sale
of manufactured goods. Service charges are accounted for on safisfaction of performance
obligation which is traated as satisfied on completion of rendering of services under the coniract.

Dividend income is recognized as and when received.

Claims: Al sorts of claims by or against the company are recognized as and when acknowledged
! acceptad / seitled / received.

1.13 Employee Benefits

Shart-term employee benefits- Employee benefits payable wholly within 12 months of rendering
services are classified as short term employee benefits and are recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.

The obligations for employee benefit such as Leave encashment is accounted for on accrual
hagis.

Defined Contribution Plan: Contribution to defined schemes such as Provident Fund and £GI is
recognized during the period in which the employee renders the refated service.

Defined Benefit Plan: The Gratuity benefit is funded through the Group Gratuity Scheme under
the Life insurance Corporation of India. Contribution made under the scheme is charged as
expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

The liability /asset in respect of defined benefit plan is the present vaiue of the defined benefi
apligation at the end of reporling period less fair vaiue of the ptanned assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuariai valuer.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Performance based declared ex-gratia & accretion thereto is provided in the Statement of Profit
and Loss and to be disbursed as per the policy framed by the management

1.14 Borrowing Costs

.15

‘Borrowing costs that are directly aftributable to the acquisition or construction of gualifying assets
are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A gualifying asset is ane that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Lass account in the year in which

they are incurred,

Functional and Presentation Currency

tems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary

econormic environment in which the Company operates. (Functional Cerrency) The financial

statements are presented in indian rupees, which is the presentation currency of company.

Foreign Currency Transactions

a. All foreign currency fransactions are franstated into functional Currenicy at the rate
prevalent on the date of transaction.

b. Non-rmonetary items are transiated at the rate on the date of initial transaction.

C. Monetary itemns denominated in foreign currency are transiaied at the prevailing closing
spot rate at each reporting date.

d. Foreign exchange gain of iosses in respect of monetary and non-monetary items is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

1.16 Tax expenses represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

=

ifi.

Current Incotme Tax

Taxes including current income-tax are computed using the applicable fax rates and tax laws.

The tax rates and iax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and
generates isxalle income.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities Liability for additional taxes, if
any, is provided / paid as and when assessments are compieted.

Current tax related to OCH ttem are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCH),

Peferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using halance sheel approach.
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L AKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statementis
For the vear ended March 31, 2023

Deferred income tax assets and Habiliies are recogrized for temporary differences which is
computed using the tax rates and tex taws that tiave been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Defarred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit witl
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be uiilized.

The cartying amount of deferred income tax assels is reviewed ai each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit witl be available to
atiow all or part of the deferred income tax asset fo be utifized.

Deferred tax ralated to QC! ltem are recognized in Other Comprehensgive Income (OCH).

1.47 Provisions

Provision is recognized when:
The Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and

A probable outfiow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and

A retiable estimate of the amount of the abligation can be made.
reimbursement of the expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised as per contract
provisions or when it is virtually certain that reimbursemsnt will be received,

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet dale.

Discounting of Provisions

Provision which expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the lability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of fime is recognised as interest expenses.

1.18 Contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets

a)
)

if)
i)
b}

)

d)

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in either of the following cases:

A present cbiigation arising from a past event, when it is not prebable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settie the obligation; or

A reliable estimate of the present obligation cannot be made; of

A possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resource is remota.

Contingent assets is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent Liahility and Provisions needed against Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets are
reviewed at each Reporting date.

Contingent Liability is net of estimated provisions considering possibie outflow on setilement.
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Staiements
For the vear ended March 31, 2023

1.1 Earnings Per Share

1.20

£.21

1.22

k)

in determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit atiributable fo equity
sharsholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year. The dilutive earning per share is same as
hasic earning per share as there is no dilution involved during the year.

Fair Value Measurement

Company measures financial instruments ai fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid {o fransfer a liabiiity in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the fiability takes place either

«in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabifity.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair
value of an asset or a Hability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient dala are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unchservable inpuis,

Dividend io equity holders

Dividend paid/payable shali be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are
approved by shareholders or board of directors as appropriate.

Financial instruments:-
Initial recognition and measurement

Tinancial Instruments are recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
A, FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Assets At Amortized Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business modet
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to coliect contractuai cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principat and interest on the principal amount oltstanding.

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

. A financiat asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principat amount outstanding.

The company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and
joint veniures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevacable election to present in
BB B
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIAY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2023

other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair vaiue of such equity
instruments.

Fair vatue through Profit and loss account
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vaiue with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

B. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
a} Financia! liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

b} Financial liabilities at FVTPL
The company has not designated any financial liabiiities at FVTPRL.

¢} Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss if incurs because the specified debtors fails to make
the payments when due in accordance with term of debt instrument financial guarantee contract
are recognized initially as liability at fair vaiue adjusted for transition cost  that are directly
attributed the issuance of the guarantee Subsequently, the hability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss alfowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind As 109 and the
amount initially recognized less cumulative income recognized in accordance with principal of ind
AS115,

d} Derecognition
Financial Asset

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or par of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights i the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the
ownership of the asset

Financial Liability

A financial fiability is derecognised when the obligation under the fiability is’ discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial fiabitity is replaced by another from ihe same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiaily
modified, such an exchange ot modification is freated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference In the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

e} Impairment of financial assets:

The company assesses on forward looking basls the expecied credit losses associaled with its
assete carried at amortized cost and FVOCH debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, Note 45(b} details
how the company determines whether there has been significant increase in credit risk.
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2023

For trade receivables only, the companies applied a simplified approach permittad by Ind AS 10¢
Financial nstruments, which reguires expected lifetime losses 10 be recognized from iniial
recognition of receivaiies.

Current and Non-Current
The Comparny presents assets and ligbilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/ Non-
Current classification.

An asset is treated as Current when it s -

a) Expected to be realized or intended fo be sold or consumed in normal operating cycie;

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

) Expected to be realized within twelve months sfter the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used io seftie a

liabifity for at ieast twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a} It is expected {o be settled in normat operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpese of trading;

) it is due to be seftied within twelve months after the reparting period, or

d} There is no unconditional sight to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-cutrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Non-current Assets {or disposal groups) held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered pringipally through a sale iransaction and 2 sale is considered highly
propable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or dispesal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unfikely that the sale will be withdrawn
and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified
as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cosis to sell
Property, plant and equipment and iniangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for saie are presented
separately in the statement of financial position.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”

are no longer met, the disposal group ceases 1o be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset

that ceases to be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of

{i its carying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been recognised had that asset not been ciassified as held
for sale, and

(i) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases 1o be classified as
held for sale,
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LAKELAND CHEMICALS (NDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statemenis
For the year ended March 31, 2023

4.25 Units of Measurement:

All financial information presented in Indian rupees and af values are rounded to the nearest
lakhs rupees with two decimal points except where otherwise stated.
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EAHELAND CHEMICALS (INDEAY LIKITED

HOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET A% AT 315T MARCH 2023

Hote: 3 DTHER NON CURRENT FINANCISL AS5ETS
{Mnsacured, cansidered goed)

iAamount in Eakhs)

Partoulary 4s Bt 215t March 20723 As at 315t March 2022 As at 15t April 2021
Sequrily Deposit jMatarastra Stale Electrelly Distributisn Co) 14,03 -
Rank depasits with more than 12 months maturity 1i.60 -

Total 31.631

tiote: 4 DEFFERED TAX A55ETS

Particiiars Az ab 313t March 2023 A5 3 3tar tarch 2022 A% at st Aprl 2021
Cipening Batancs 38358 13494 30833
Add: ChargedCredil} lo Statement of Profit and Loss - 48,35 31363
Adel: ChargedCredily 1o Olher Cominghangive Income - -

Total 383.51 383, 51 134.98

"Hote: Pursient to the corperate insolvency resolution process)“CIART) under the Insplvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2096 which was initiated against the Company on Zird
Septetmnber 2019 and fo terms of the approved resotution plan vide an Drder of the Mational Company Law Tribunal {*NCLT" dated September 19, 2022, Earlier, OTA oh Previo
{emses has tot been considered In view of virtual urcertainity under lncome Tax Act for recagrnition of defermed tax assets a2 required under 45 22, Deferred tax assets are
recognized tar unused tax losses and unabsarbed depreciation to the exent Lhat it iz probabde that taxeble protit will be available agatnst rehich losses can be utitised significant

T tis

B J
with fure tax planning strategies. Hence doffered Lax, agsets wiltl made accordingly in Future.

nused tax losses, Unabsorbed dapreciation and temperary differences an

which na deffered 1ax assels recognlsed in Balance sheel

As 2t 31-Mar-22
Pargicutar Bage Ameunt Defecred Tax®
Unused Tax Losses 16,063,467 4 137
Linzbsarbed depreciatian 2.587.30 H73
Fatal 18,651.07 4,84%.38
Opening Deffered Tax assets 133.41
Met, Beifered Tax Assats 4,465.77

"beffered Tax Assels created an CfF fosses and unabsorbed depreciakion and Effective rate of tax-26%

Details of tinused Tax losses { Husiness)

Particular Base Amount
AY 2718 £22.50
AY 2B 1,543,714
AY 101%-20 11,824,068
ALY F0R0-21 452.31
AY 201-22 §22.5%
AY I022-23 553.09
Total 16,064
Datails of Ynabsoriyad deprectation
Particular Baze Amount
AY HHT-18 43634
AY MHE-1% 2.9
A 201920 635,42
A 021 544,40
AY 2001-22 19861
Total 1,387

1) Unabsorbed depreciation deesat have any expiry perfod under the Income Tax Act 1961
{2} Mo deferred Lax benefit i3 recagnised in the abtence of reasonable certainty thal taxable Income will e generaied by the company to offset the osses

except balances a5 at I1-Mar-22 of Rs. 383,51 lakhe

#ote: & Imventories

Expiry {#ssessment Year)

202526
202627
2027-28
2038-29
2023-3q
4303

guired to d ine the amount of deferred b a3l that can be recognised, based upan the likely timing and ieved of future taxable profit sogether

Farticular As at 3ist sarch 2023 As at 31st March 2022 A5 at 15t April 2021
Stock in Trade At -
flaw Materials 19.92 19.92
Work-in-pracess 1691 1691
Fitdshed Goods 181 1181
Packing Materials and Stares &t Spares i.40 140
Total 406,84 49 B5 49.85

Waluation of inventaries are dene @& par point nr. 1§ f signillcan dccouritkn g palicies




LAKELAHD CHEMICALS (IM01A) LIMITED
ROTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET A% AT 315T MARCH 1023

Haobe: & TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Unsecured, considered goad]

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particudar As ab Fist As at 3ist Ay st 13t April
fearch 2023 March 2027 202¢
Related Party - . -
Others 140,60 56.91 443.22
Total 140,60 56,91 443.82

For trade receivebles cutstanding as on 315t March 2023, following ageing schedule shall be piven:

(Ripeas in Lakhs)

Particuiars Qutstanding Tor Tollowing periods Trom due date of paymeant
loss than & | 6 menths -1 1-2 Years 3 years | More than 2 Totai
months YE&T Years
{i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - -

{ii} Unitisputed Trade Recelvables — which have signiticant
increase in credi risk

240.80

240.60

{iif) Undisputed Trade Recelvables — cradit impaired

iv} Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good

(v Disputed Trade Kecwivables — which have significan! increase
in cradi risk

{vi) Dispuled Trade Receivables — credit impaired

iate sPUTsUANT th the corporate insolwenry reselution process“CIRE") under the insctvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 which was inltiated against the Campany on 23rd
September 201% and in terms of the approved resslution plan vide an Order of the Hatlonal Company Law Tribunal ("HCET™) dated Sepoamber 19, 2022, Gther current assets
which is leng cutstanding and reported as opening balance for the year has been made transferred to Exceptional ltem. Refer Note no 26 "Exceptional Item”. Hence No trade

receivable ageing as on 31 -Mar-12 is given

Hote: 7 Cash and Cash equivalents

Particular Asat 3ist | - Asat3ist | As at Tstapril
o #arch 2023 | - March 2022 2024 -
Balances with Banks B - -
Cash on hand - 0.1% .20
Balances with Banks 293.91 18.35 53.63
Foral 29351 18.55 6184
Hote: & OTHER CURRENT FINARCIAL ASSETS
Particidar As ab Ast Asat 395t | As at 1sb April
’ N March 202% March 2022 2021
advances (Recoverable in cash or in kind or for vatue to be .M f.46
received]
Security Deposits - #4350 10.50
Accried Interest on FDR's .83 . -
Tatal 0.63 3 16,96
Hote: 9 Giher Lurrenl Assets
Particular As at st Az at 31st s at 1st Apri!
: #arch 2023 March 2022 202%
Baiance of 55T 9324 - -
Chatrms Receivable - 1,000,000 1,000,004
{Other Advances 58.97 .72 26.78
Totai 152.24° 1,026,72 1,026.76

Nate :Pursuant to the corporate inselvency resolution pracess{“CIRF”) undar the insolvency and Banknuptey Code, 2016 which was Infllated agafast tHhe Company on ird
September 2019 and I8 temss of he approved resclution plan vide an Qrder of the Hational Carnpary Law Tritunal {“HCLT™) dated September 19, 2022, Othat current assets
witrich is kong outstanding and reported as opening balance for the year has been made transfemed Lo Exceptional (tem. Refer Note no 26 “Exceplional fom® :




LAKEEAHD CHEMCAES |IMELA) EEMITED
HOTES FORMIMG PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET A% AT 3157 MARCH 2023

Hoke: 10 Eguily Share capital

N Azt 31st Maseh ] As at Jist Marchf A3 av Tst aprll
Farticulers 2013 2072 023
i, i ir - ; ey ar B
1,33,00,000 Aui.hcr;.f_‘\‘d share capitel Eouity shares of By, 10 eech (Previous yoar 50,00,000 1,500, 60 500,60 S00.00
Bty Sharos of Ry, 10 each;
7, 500,00 500,03 503, 00
1ssuodsubacried and Paid up Capitsl
i : 4 O ey a . T .
I,OD,.OG,GGO Equity shares of s 40 eath (Previous year 46,148,300 Equity Shares of Re. 10 1.000.00 a51.83 444,81
eachj
1, 060,00 461,83 441,83

10,1 Qetails of sharehoider holding mere than 5% in the company

AS at 31st March 2023

As ab 315t March 022

As al 1st Aprfi 203%

Harme of the shareficlder -Heo in Shares * hols:::sm the He i Shares K{tuh:i:::‘in Heo fh Shares %&ﬁlr;i:n
Equity shares of Rs. 104 each fully paid

#LJ Resources Limited 94,59,994.00 99.99%

Vijay athatye 27,861,050 &40, 72%, 7,81,05 60, 22%
jDeepalk Tikekar 5,480,000 12.59% 5,800,000 32.59%
Lakaland Laboratries 11,79,250 2533 11,79.25¢ 35,33%
Total ¥%9,9%,994.00 %99 45,40, 300 8. 14% 45,40,300 98.14%

10,2 Rights, Preferences and Resirictions attaching to shares

Equlty Shares: The Company has ane class of Equity Shares having a par vaiue of Rs. |G per share. Each sharehatter i etigitle foe une vole per share held, The dividerd proposed by Board of Diveclors is
subject to approval of the shareholder in the ensurthg Annual Seneral Meeting, except In case on Interdn dividend. In the event of lguidation, the equity sharghalders are atigible to receive the remaining
assels of the Company after distribution of all preferental amounts, In propertion to their sharehslding,

10.% Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capitat

&5 a1 3ist March 2013

As at 115t March 2022

As at 1st ApcH 2024

Parlh:ul_ars He in Shares Ahount Mo in Shares - hmeyunt Ko in Shares Amourt
Issued FSubscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the beginnmg of the year 46,118,300 461.83 4, 18, 300 461,83
Add: Shares fssued during the year 1,00,00,000 1,000.00
flssued/Subserited and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,00,000 £,000.00 46,18,300 461.83 44,18, 300 45%.83
1.4 The aggregate shareholding of the promsters snd proreoter group as ot 31.03.22
Mame of Lhe Promotars Mo, of Shams Holg Percontage of % Change during the
Holding YERT
KL Regsources L. 39,99,594 EER O
Sh. Hemant Jain 1 0.00 T00%
Sh. Kamal Jain i 0.0 1
Sh. Pushp Jain 1 0.00 1K
Sme. Sushila Jain 1 0.80 1005
Sink. Neetu Jain 1 0.0 1R
Smt. Sonali fain 1 1844} T

“Note: Pursuant i the comoraie insobvency resolition provess{“CIRE™) under the insalventy and Bandwupley Code, 2016 which was fnlliated agaias 1he Company on 23rd Septomnbes 2099 and i Lenms of
the appreved ressiution pian vide an Order of the National Company Law Tribunal (“HCLT™| dated September 19, 2622, the equity share capital of the earstwhile prometens have beer vxtinguished and
fresh equity capitat of Ra 10,00,00,000 hes been introduced consfsts of 1,00,00,000 equity share capitat of Rs. 10 each as per resolution plan.

Notes11 Other Equity

A5 at 3ist March i As ab 3ist March]  As at st April

Particulars 1023 - 2022 2024
Retained Earnings (Refes Hote 31.1) 24678 ST, SO0 E -6, 609, 46!
Securities Premium - P8E.46, 9089

-246.78 -16 511,78, -15 820,503
Hote: 11.1

As at 31st March | As ab 395t March As xt 15t April

Pacticulars 2023 2022 2024
Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet -17,500.72 16, BF.46 -35,0%3.81
Add: Profit after Tax 15,288.52 -A%i.16 831,95
Add: AdjusEment due ta prios perdod error 6.1
Add: Due to reduction o lace value of shares 461,82 .
Add: Amaunt Transfer 10 Dpuional Convestible Debenture |Equity; 914,63
Ldd; Amacnt Transfer fram Security Premium o Capital Reseve account 9BB_96

-246. 7 -17,500.71 -1, 609,46
Securities Premivm Account
hs per tasl Batance Sheet HES. 96 FER. TG FRA. 96
tess: Transfer from Capitaé Reduction Account R R -
items of Other comurehensive income recognised directly in retained earntngs
Remeasurements of deffned benefits plans, net of tax

~246.7% <16, 511, Té! - 15,820, 5}

Hobe: FLEsuant ta the corparale msolvency resolution process("CiRP "} umder W Tsotvency aud Dankruproy Code, 2016 which was initipied agalnst e Compary on 23rd September 2019 and 10 Levmis of the approved resolutfon
plan vide an rder of the Hatinnal Company Law Tribunal ("HCLT™) dated Sepiomber 19, 2022, the amourd arising on acconat of 1le assets reduced ar write off or the halances of operacional aod financial creditars and other

liabities extinguished represemt in Ehe Exceptional izem in Prefit and Loss accoant.
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LARELAMD CHERICALS (iMDLA] LIMITEDR
HMOTES FORMING PART GF THE BALANCE SHEETY A5 AT 3157 MARCH 7427

Note: 12 BORROWIHGS -NOH-CURRENT

Particular g at 113t March 2023 As at 31st March 26722 As ar ik Aprll 202

Secured

HACDFC Term Eoan 151,69

dank of Borana Term Loan 3,909.93 3,909.93

Less Current Maturity of Long Term Borrovdings 15.37 - -

138,37 3,%09.%3 390593

Unsecured

Debentures - At Amortised Cost 2,283.37

{2% (Comadative ) Optionally Convertible Debentures at Face Yalue of #2. 10 of Es.

37,98,00,000

From Share holders & Others . 2,184.84 2,1E4. 134
Total I,421.69 6,054, 77 6,0%94.77

Hete: Pursuant e the corparate insabvency resslution process|"CIRP™) under the Insolvency and Bankriptey Code, 20¥6 which wes initiated againgt the Company on 23rd September 2019 and in
terms af the approved resatution plan vide an Qrder of the National Company Lok Tribunat {*NCLUT™) dated September 19, 2022, the {iabillty tawards $ecured and Unsecured financial creditors

(inciuding Interest| stands extingufshed edcepl the amount a5 fmentioned and gaid In the Resolution Plan by the Resolution applican:,

#Hote: 13 Other non-current Habilities

Particular. As at 3ist March 2023 As at 315t March 2022 As alist April 2021
security Deposit 3.92 -
Yotal 1.92 - N

Mote: 14 BORROWINGS-CURRENT

{Partiouiar A5 at 315t March 2023 As at 115t March 2022 As at st April 2021
Secured
(it Cash Credit and Foreigh 841s Discounting fram Bank of Baroda 9,128.7¢ 9,146.55
Hypothecation of stocks of raw materlals, work-in-process, finlshed goods, packing
raterials and Sook Debts
(i) Packing Credit from Bank of Baroda 1,078.0% 1,078.05
{iii} Adwvances from BOB tovards CIRP - 1750 .
(feh HOFC Torm Loan -Current Maturity of Long Temrn Bormrowings 15.37
Linsecured
Borrowings from Holding Co.{ KL§ Resources Lid} 741.08 . -
i Tatal 757.45-| 10,224.61. 10,324:61
Hate: Pursuant 1o the camsorate insalvency resalution processt“CIRP™} under the nsobvency and Bankruploy Code, 2018 which was 2gainst tha Company an 13rd September 2019 and i

terme of tha apgroved teselution plan vide an Order of the Natlonal Company Law Tribunal (“HLLT"} dated September 19, 2022, the Watility Lawards Secuted and Unmoured finaacial creditoes

[Ineluding taterest) stands extinguished sxoept the anount ¢ montiened and gald in the Resolution Plan by the Ressluslon applicant,

Move: 5 TRADE PAYABLES

Pargicislar

As at 3{stMarch 2023

As at 3ist March 2022

As at ist Aprit 2021

a) dues of micro enterprises and snall enterprises
b} dues of credicars other than micre enterprises and smal enterprises

Retated Parties 567.28 - -

Others 3,507.32 382271

¢ } disputed N _

dues of micro enterprises and smalf crierprises

Cirers - -
Tatal SHF.28. 3.507.32 3.822.74

“Refor pole N0 far MSHE Dischosure”
“Rofar note no. 35 Tor Tradn P oyable Aging”

Hote: Fursuant ta the carparate insobvency resobution process{*CIRF ) under e dnsofvency and Bankraptcy Code, 2096 which was nitfaled against the Company on 25d September 2019 and in
terms of the appraved resotution pian vide an Order of the Nationa! Company Law Tribunal {(*MCLUT ™| dated Seprember 19, 2022, the Jlability towards Seawed and Unseeured fisancial erednots

{inciuding interest) stands extinguished except the amount as mentiomed and pald ia the Resolution Plan by 1he Resolus fon appiicant.

Nate: 16 Other Current Liabilities

Particular .

As at 31st March 2023

#s at 3st March 2022

Az at tst April 2021

Statutory Liatitities 7.9 245,53 259.38

Advances Fram Customers - 14233 236.73

Others payable and depesits 124,32 542.66 0047
Total 132.27 1,030.52 96,56

Hate: 17 Current Tax Llability (Het)

Particular - As at 315t March 2023 A% 2t 3ist March 2022 As at ist April 2071

Lurrent Tax Liability

Proct Tax Payable - B5.26 3,16

Less: Advance Tax & TD% .26 4,84 475
Total 026 BO.42 B85

Bloter Pursuant %0 the corporate i

ncy resolution procgsst“CHPT) under the Insclvency and Bankeupoy Cade, 2016 which was initiated against the Company on 23rd September 2019 and In

terms of the approwed resclution plan vide an Order of the Katfonal Company Law Tribunal [NELT ] dated Seplember 19, 2022, the Hability towards Secured and Unsecured Mnancial creditans

linchuding Interest} stands extinguishad except the amount as meraioned and paid In 1he Resoiution Flan by the Resolution applicant.




LAKEL AND CHEMICALS {INDIA} LBATED

HOTES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT ARD LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 215T MARCH 2023

Hote: 18 Revenue fraom Operations

Pareicuiars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Sale of products (Trading) 201.69 -
Sale of products (Manufaciuring) -
Sales Refurn - 571
Other Dperating Revenue 23.28 -
Total 224,97 -5.71
Hote: 19 Other Income
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2023 3%.03.2022
Rent 2,61 -
interest Income 0.03 0.90
Bad debls Recovery - 0.20
ather income 0.37
Total 2.64; 1.47
Note: 20 Cost of Material Consumed
Particulars - Year End_ed - Year Ended _
R 31.03,2023 ©31.03.2022.
Opening Stock 1992 14.92
Less: Inventory w/off 9.92 -
16.00 13,92
Add © Purchases - 23,57
10.00 45,49
Less: Closing Stock 19.92
Total 10,50 25.57
Note: 21 PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
particulars ~ Year Ended Year Ended
©31.03.2023 31.03,2022
Purchase of Traded Goods 560.48
Other direct expense 2.13
C : Total 562,64 -
Note: 22 CHANGES I IMVENTCORIES OF FINISHED GOOBS & STOCK-IN-TRABE
Particulars : ) Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2023 31,063.2022
Qpening Stock
Traded Goods -
Finished Goods 11.69
Waork m Process 16.9
- 28.53
Less « Closing Stock
Traded Goods 406,04 -
Finished Goods - 11.61
Viork in Process 16.97
406.04 28.53
Total £06.04




Hote: 23 Employee Benefit Expense

Poriiculars Yaar Ended Year Ended
31.03,2023 JF.03.2022
Salaries & Wages 6,52 18.12
Contribution to Provident and other funds 0.23 31.56
Staff Welfare Expenses .97
Totai .81 2168
Note: 24 Finance {osts
Particulars - Year Ended Year Eaded
31.03.2023 - 31.063.2022
interest Paid -
Eank Charges & Commission 0.9%
Total 0.95} -
Note: 25 Other Expense
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Rent 2,19 2.25
Hates & Taxes / Fees 11.04 -
Repairs & Maintenance 0.16
Insurance Expenses 17.62
Power, Electricity & Waker 4.26 1.56
Telephone & fobile 0.03 0.0
Printing, Stationery & Computer expenses 1.54 D.14
Travelling and Conveyance .60 2.01
Donation 0.25 -
Business Promotion - 0.17
Freight Expenses 2.94 0.06
Consultancy, Legal & Professional Fees 0.04 -17.78
CEHRP Charges - YA
siscelianeous Expense 0.12 24.44
Auditor Remuneration 1.00 2.50
Consumable Stores, Spares Parts Consumed -
Teotai 24,01 298
8. Exceptional items
Particulars - - - Year Endad Year Ended
31.,03,2023 At.03.2022
Bxtinguishment of Operational and Financial Creditors (a3 per 3,726.37 -
the terms of Approved Resciution Plan}
Extinguishment of Other Current and Non-Current Liability 13,233.36 -
impairment of Qther Current and Non-Current Assets 1,125.07 -
Totat 15,834.66 -

*Refer Note no 48




Mate 17 Earnings per Share:

LAKELAND CHEACALS (INDIA) LIMTED

Farticulars

For the year
anded 3ist
bharch 20232

Far the year vhded
31sr March 2022

Basic EPS

From contiruing aperation
from discontinuing aperation
Diluted EPS

From continuing operation
From discontinuing operation

17.1 Basic Earning per Share

(Hs. per sharg}

{Rs. per share)

22145

i21.43

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares uged in calculatian of basic earning per share:-

-14.97

-14.97

Particutars

For the year

For the year ended

;:f::;;;‘; 315t March 2012
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company:
Continuing operatians 15,288.52 4926
Bistontinuing operations - -
Earnings used in caloation of Basic Earming Fer Share 15,288.52 -6%1.26
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic samings per share 69,03 679 46,18,300

7.2 Diluted Eaming per Share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted earning per share:-

Far the year
pacstrs e st TG o
March 2023
Prefit attribulable to equity halders of the company:
Continuing operatians 1528852 601 24
Discontinuing operations .
Earnings used in calculation of diluted Earming Per Share from cantinuing 15,288.57 601,26

aperations

The wetahted number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted gaming per share reconciles o the weighted average aumber of aguity
shares used in calculation of basic eamning per share as foliows:

Particulars

For the year

Far the year anded

:‘:f:s :E:z‘; 31t March 2022
Welghted average number of Equity shares used In caloulation of hasic €%,03,679 46,18,309
Effect of dilution:
Share Dptions
Weighted average number of Eguity shares used in calzulation of diluted
Eamgings o Sh:m auity £9.03,679 46,18,300

23 Financial Viability

The Company has made delailed assessment of its fHguidity position {or the next one year and of the recoverability and carrying values
of its assets and liabilities, and based on the internal and extermal information up to the date of approval of these financial statements
inctuding cradit reparts and economic forecasts, has eancluded Lhal ne adjustmients are required to be made in the financial results,
The management believes that it has considered all the possible impact of known events arising in the preparation of Hrancial results,
Further company is of the opinion that there s certainty that company wili he able o meet its all-financial commitments due in next

ane year,

Neote 29, Related Party disclosures as reguired by Ind-25 24 "Related party Pisclasisre”

29,1 ey Management Personnel;
Mr. Hemant Jain, Directar

Mr_ Harshvarschan bothra, Direclor

#r. Hanuman Jalin, Director

9.2 Other related pacties with whom the company had transactions:-

Others {Group Concerny:
KL} Ptasticizers Limited.
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29,3 Heidipg Compan
KL Resqurces

¥
Limiled {Shave: 100%)

2%.4 Disclosure of transactions with related parties:

{Amount in Lakhs)

Transaction Buring [Mame of Redated Parties .  |Retadonship 31t March, 2023 3ist-March,2022 |

the year S . : : (Reder Mate -
o below'}

Purchase KLJ Resources Limited Haolding Company 335,06 -

Furchase KLJ Plasticizers Limited Group Concem 12169

Reimbursernent of KLJ Resources Limited Halding Company 2.46 -

Expense

Interest Expense KL Resources Limited Haolding Company 33.01 -

Rent Ingome HLJ Rescurces Limited Holding Company .08 -

Security Deposit KLJ Resources Limited Halding Company 1.92 -

received

Borrowing KLd Resources Limfied Holding Company 3,240.08 -

Quistanding Balance

as at 31st March

2043

Trade Payable KLJ Resources Limited Hoiding Company 137.4%

Trade Payabla KLJ Plasticizer Limited Group Concerm 221,69 -

Expense payable KL} Resources Limited Hoiding Campany 21.53 .

Security Dapasit KLJ Respurces Limited Hedding Carnpany 1.92 -

Barrowing KLJ Resources Limited Helding Company 1,540.08 -

"Hote :Pursuant to the corporate insofvency resolution process{“CIRP*) under the insalvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which
was initiated against the Company on 23rd September 2019 and in kerms of the approved resolution plan vide an Order of the
National Company Law Tribunat (“NCLT") dated September 1%, 2022, previous year balances stand extinguished

Note 30, Capits|-Work.in Progress (CWIF)

For Capitat-work-in progress, foliowlng agelng schedule as on 3ist Mar 2023 {Rupask in Lakhs)

Aarwaurt in CWIP under duvelopment for a period of
CWIP Less than 1 year i-2 year 2-3 Yeor Muore than 3 Year Tede!
::gf}f:sss'" 366,08 . - . 364.08
Tatal 364.08 - - - 6408

Hate 31, Borrowing fram Banks
The Company has borrowings {rom banks or financial institulions on the basis of securily of current assels, the quarterly retumms of
stalemenls ol current E flied by the Company wilh hanks or f Fnanmal mst:tmmns are in agreement with the books of account

0.0

FIGEC Bank

Hole 32. Commitments, Coentingent Liabiiitles and Conlingent Assets
32.1 Capitai Commitments : A3 at 31t March, 2023 Fis. 41327 and 31st Rarch, 2022 Rs.Nil

322 Contingent Liabllities & Contingent Asget

) Contingent Liabilities and Contigent Assets, ag defined in ind AS 37 on "Provisians on Contingent Liabildes and Contingent Assets”, are
disclosed beiow. Provision is made, ¥ # becomes probable thal and owlfiow of fulure sconomic Denefits will be required for the ilem
previously dealt with as Cantingent Liabiity.

*As per the appraved Resclulion Plan, contingent fiabilitiss (which have / are capable of being crystallized) prior to Sep19, 2022 (*Effective
Bate”] sland extinguished, Furhermore, Ihe Resalution Plan, among other matters, provide that except to the exient of the amaun payable
o the relevant Coerational Graditors in accordance wiih The Resolution Plae, all lisbilities of the Company relaling in any manner 1o ihe
veriod prior 10 the Effeclive Date, immediately, imevocably and unconditionally stard fully and finally discharged and setlied and there
being no further claims whatsoever, and a the rights of the Operational Credilors and Other Crediors to Invoke or enforce the same
slands waived off. It is provided that any and all fegal procesdings inttiated before any forum by or an behall of any Operational Creditor
{including Governmental Authorilies) or any Other Creditors 1o enforce any rights o claims against the Company also stands exinguisher,
Further, in terms of the Resolulion Plan, no Governmeantal dulhority bas ary further righls or claims against the Company, in respec of the
period pricr o the Effective Date and ¢ or in respect of the amounts written off and all legal groceedings initiated before any forum by or on
behall of any Dperafional Creditor (including Governmendal Authonties) or any Other Cradifors, o enforce any righis or alains agatnst the
Company will immediately, irrevosably and unconditionally stand withdrawn, abated, settied and/or extinguished. Further, the Operationa
Creditors of the Company {including Govermmental Authorities) and Olher Crediiors will have ne further rights or ciaims against the
Company inrespect af any labikity for period pdor to 1he Efective Date, and all such claims shall immediately, irrevocally and
uncordlittonzlly sland extinguished.

As af 31st Az at Jist March
Particul
rovas Riarch 2073 2022
Bank (Guarantees .00 -




Hote 33.Lease Arrangements

Compary has lease of term of twelve montis os Legs (shord-term leases) and fow vatue lgases For these short-term and iow value
lsases, the Corapany recognizes the lease payments a5 an cperaling expense on a siraight-iine basiy over the term of the lease The
company has entered shorl Lerm lease arreangrivent during Lhe yeas,

Note 34. There are no deiays in payments to Micro and Smai Tnlerprises as reqisired to be distlosed prder the Micro, Small and Mediura
[hterprises Development Act, 2006, Tha fformation has heer determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of infarmation avatlatile with the company.

Note 38, Trade Payable Ageing
For trada payable outstanding as on 3tst March 2023, following agsing scheduie shall be given:
{Rupeet in Lakhs)

Quistanding for following periods fram due date

Particitar
Less than 1 Yazr 1.2 year 243 Year More than 3 Year Todal
ST - - - - -
Dthers 567.28 - - - 55728

Disputed dues MSME - R _ T T

Disputed dues Others - - - B -

tole: Pursuant to lhe corporale insalvency rasoiution process(CIRP*) under the Insclvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 which was
iriliated against the Company an 23rd September 2019 and in terms of the approved resolulion pian vide an Order of the National
Company Lew Tribunal ("NCLT"} dated September 19, 2022, the fiability towards Secured and Unsecured financial crediors (including
irlerest) stands extinguished except 1he amount as mertioned and paid in the Resoldion Plan by the Resaolulion applicant. Henes Mo
Trade payabie Ageing as on 31-Mar-22 has been given,
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LARKELAND CHEMICALS {INDIA) LIVITED

MNelg 37, Capitat management

The compeny mEnages s capial 1o ensure that the company wilt e able o continue 4% 3 geing concera while maximising P felum fo stakanalder Ihvough cotimizaton of {he
flebl and equity balance The capliss sinscture of 1he company cemprises of debt and sotai ety of the cornpiny.

Beht Egulty Ratio fRupees o Lakiic)
Parilculars As at 31st Az al 3151 Az at1st
Mareh 2023 Marck 2022 Aprif 2031
Borrawng {MNole o, 12 5 14) ERTERE $6.,315.38 13,315.38
Short term debt 3,470,174 16,319.38 16,314.38
Equity {MHote Ma. 10} 1,000.00 461.83 451,83
Other euity (Noete No 113 [Z45.78) (12.511.76) {15,820.5G}
Tolai aquity TE3ZZ  [16,049.93] {15350.57)
Oebt equily Ratie 44777 -1 1150 L Tal:]
Hote 3&. Fair Yaiug measurements
{i} Financizl instruments by Category [Rupeos in Lahhey
Paniculars &3 5 315t Marﬁznn As at 3ist March, 2027 Az at st Aprld 202
FUTRL FYTOC! Amastised FYTPL F¥TOGH Amortised FVYTPL FvTOCI Amertisad
Cast Goat Cam
Financial fssets
Trade Recevables - - 4060 B - 56.91 - - 45382
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 283,51 - - 18.55 - - €3.84
Owers - - 366 - - 1321 - - 16.68
Tofal Financial Assets - - §BE.77 - - 88.67 - - £24.61
Financial LiablHthes
Borrowings - - 242169 - . 16,319.358 - - 609477
Trade Payablses - - - - - . . - .
Total Finaneial Llabilities - - 7.421.6% - - 16,315.38 - - 608477

I3 Tha camying amounts of Irsde receivailies, trade payable, cash and cash equivalents and ether shorl ferm recevables and payables which are due o be settfad within 12
manths &re considered to the same &s their fair values, due 10 shett tarm nabure,

ily Borrowings-Currant ana evaluated by compary on parameters sioh as interest rates, spaciic counlry risk faciors and other dsk Taciors. Based an this evalustion the far
vatue of such payatdes are nol matessly oifferent from thair camying amaount, As the amount is immeterial, na fair valalion is required.

iify Mo Curreni Loans given and Securily Depesit hava been continued al caring valus as measurment implication are immaterial,

iv] Adl iovaaimenls other shan subsidiacy and associates are measured at fair vaiue, with value changes recognized in Slatement of Cther Comprehiensive Income Investmants
in subsidiatios and associates have been cerriad at cost less impairement 055 i any, through Other Comprenensive ncome.

Hote :Pursuan e the conpwate inselvency resciulion process("CIRPY) under the Insoivency and Bankraptey Code, 2016 which was initiated against the Company an 23rd
Seplember 2018 and in terms of the approved resolution plan vide en Crder of the National Company Law Tribunal {"MCLT") dalad Septembec 39, 2022, The company istsuid
2% Optional Canveritbie Debeniure of Rs. 2748 lakhs face value of INF 10{ndian Rupees 10} sach and the company recognised Gplional Converlibfe Dabaniung ({ebf
portion] at Fair value of Ametised Cosi of Rs. 2283.37 1akhe and Optional Convertible Debeniure (Equity pottion) of Rs 514,67 lakhis in Reiained Earning 26 per indAS 32,
IndAS 107, Financial Instument . i the apinon of Board of Qirectors, The Dptional Convantibia Debantura wil e aither redesmable or convertible in (o aguity shares wilhin
pariad of 3 yaar,

{iy Fadr Value biemrchy
Level 1- Quoted prces (unagjustad) in active markets for identicar assats or fiabiliies

Lavel 2. Inputs ather fhan qualed prices includet within Level 1 that are sbservable for the assets arliability, sither directly (e, a5 prices) arindirecthy (e derved fom prices)

i.evel 3- Inputs for the assals or liabtlities that are not basad on chservable market data (unohservable inputs}

The financial aseats and linanclal iapiles are valued st Amodised Cest, since no Tair valuation technigue I being used hancs, Tair
value hierarchy is not required.

{iv) Financlal sk management
Tha Sompany's principat financlad fabllities comprise of Borowings, Trage Payables and othars. The main perpose of thess financiat abilites is o finance the company's

aperalmns. The Coempany's principal financial asseds include Trade Receivables, Loans. tash and cash aquivalents and other bank balances that derve directly from its
cparalians.

The Company's 15 expase to markel risk, cradil nzk snd lkidily risk. The cempany financal risk actuilies are governed by appropnated policies anc proceduras and that
financial fisk ace idenified, measured and managed in accordance with the companies policies and rigk abjectives. The board of directors reviews and agrees poiicias for
managing each of Nese risk, which are surmarised delow-

a} Marke! Risk
F4arkel risk i1s e sisk that the far value of futere cash flows of a financial ingiruments walf luctuate beocause of changes :n maked prces. Markel rizk comprises iMerness rate sk
s fQnign Sarency risk.

1} Enterest Rat Hisk
Inferest rate risk is 1he risk hat the faiv valug of fulure cash flows of a financial instrumants wil flucluste Decause of change mmarket intacest rate, Comaany is not expased o
sigruficent interest rate risy as ali the financial instruments which are subject to interest risk ara due o be setfled within 12 manths and carry ixed cale of inferest

it} Forzign Currency Risk
Thene are no {oreiin exchangs ransactions undentaken by e company hence, company fs ot expesed 10 foreign Curmancy rish.




m Cradit risk

1y Credil risk atises rom lhe possibilly a1 the counter Fary may fof e shle to sete heir obiiosiions as apreed. To manage thz. ke Company pericdicaity assesses financis!
reliabiity of customers and alher counler panies, laking info accourt the finantial condition, curent economic rands ard analysis of historics: tad debts 2nd agiing of finandtal
agsels Individual rigk limits aee se1 penadicaily revimeed on the basis of such infarmatica.

Firancial assets st wriden off whan thers is no reascnable 2xpectations of recavery, such as & debtor failing 1o engage in a repayment siar wih lhe Company, ¥Where loans or
receivables have bean write off, lhe Company continues to engags in estforcement activily 1o aitempl to recover \he receivable due \Winers recoveries are mate, these are
recognized a§ ivcome in the slatemant of prafil and lass

Tha Comgany hes wssd a praclical expedient by way of somguting ihe gxpected cradil loss for irede receivasies based on provision matre The matdix aiso lakes e acgount
historizel credit loss experignce and adivsted for forward Ipoklay imfarmation. The expected credi loss allowancs is based on (ke ageirg of the days the receivables arg due
arnt rales as given in the provisian maldisx

The provision matnix at the year and is a5 follows.

Particufars Expecied Grodit loas (Pereentags)

Aaming FY22-23

1- 20 gays L.00%

30 days Lo 12 rmanths £.00%

Merg than §2 menihs 300%

Pariiculars &5 at 315t March,23
Anceivables Expacied

Crodilloss

1,30 deys -

30 days 1o 12 menths 24060 N

More ihan 32 manths -

Frovision for expacted credit 'o3s made In accardance wilh tng A5 108 dus Lo which thara is change In Trade Peteivatle.
Nele ‘Pursuani ta tha corgovate insohvency resohdtion process CIRPY underihe Insoivency and Bankrupicy Code, 2016 which was Indiated agains! the Company on 23%d Septomber 2019
and in 1amas of the Spgroved resatulion plan vide an Crder of e Nationgl Company Law Tbunaf "NCLT") deled Septernbar 18, 2027, Trade Rocefvabis and o10e1 cUrent ssses which s
faing ing and reporiad as g batance fos e yaar has been made transferad lo Exceplional flem. Refer Note no 26 “Exceptional lem-

) Financial Instruments and cash daposits

Cradit rigk fram balances with berks and financial inséitutions is managed in ACCOrdance with the companies policy. Investment of surplus are mada ety with approved with

¢) Liguichy risé

Llquidity risk is e risk that the campany will not b able to meat its financial obligatons as they become due. The company manages 1ts iguidity isk by ensurirg, as far ga
possitie, that il will abways have sufficient liguikdity 10 meet 15 fiabilities when dus, under both normal and sireased conditions, withaqt incuring unacceptabie sses of risk 1o the
campay's reputation.

The company's pringipal sources of liguisity are cash and cash equivalents, cash flow that is ganerated from operations end the barrowings from Hobging Company and Barks.
The company believes thal tha warking capilal is sufficlent to maal its current raguiremants, fey shart tem surplus cash generated, over and above tha amaunl requine for
werking eapital managament and operational requirements, are given a5 interest bearing loans repavable on demand,

A at 315t March 2033 the company had werkhog capital of s, -364.32 Lakhs including cash and bank Balances of Re 29351 Lakha,
A at 3tst March 2022 the company had working eapitat of Rs. 1357763 Lakhs inchsding cash and benk Balances of s, 18,55 Lakhs.

Note 38 Key sources of sstimation uncertalnty

The Tollowings are the key assumptions concerning the futore, and the key seuroes of sstimation uncertainty at the end of the regorting perind that may have a significanz
risk of causing & materlal adjustment to the carmping amount, of assets 2nd labilites with next financial year.

a] Fair valuation measurement and valuation process

Firanctal fnstruments are measured initially at falr value and subsequently at amortised cost an the bash: of materiality. 4s on Salance Sheet date, Finanoial Asset and
Liabilittes are immiateriat and hence ro fair valuation is required

b} Tazes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused Gax losses and urabsorbed depreciation 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
losses can be utitised significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asset: thal can be recagnised, based upon the dkely tming
and level of futere tzxable profit topether with future tax plamning skrategies,

Nots 40; Ohore

1) Basad o the peition filed by & cperationat credfitor, the Hen'ble NGLT, passed the prderior initiation of CIRP under seclion T of the Inaclvercy and Bankruptey Code, 2016
s amended and hereinatier refarrad 10 a5 "ihe Coda") dated 23rd September 2019 appointing Br, Rajaey Namdkishore Bhatia was appoinied as the interim Resolution
Professional (TRF). Subsequently, the sppointment of Mr. Rajeev Mandidstiare Bhatiz was confirmad 83 the Fesalutioh Protes sional [RP). Therzalter, in the meaeting of the
Committes of Credilors (COCH the COT resotved fa reptaca the RE from Mr Rajesy Nandkishare Bhatia with Mr. Brijendra Kumar Mishra, Further, the erstwhils RP had invited
AxpEession of interesl (Eok) from Prospectiva Reaolution Spplicants (PRAS) to submit ihe Resolution Plan fr the Camparny, Final plans received were placed, put io vatg in the
CoC meeking . The resolution plan submitter By KL Resources Limiled was aporoved by CoC. The application for Plan 2pproval was filed with Hon'bie Mational Coampany Law
Tribunal {MCLT}gand supsequently hiaz been sparevediallowed by e Horke NOLT vide Order dalad 191h september 2022,

2) Wit the appraval af the Rescluion Plan by the Her'ble Matonat Company Law Tribunal {RCLT) vide Crder dated 191h September 2023, the CIRP of the Company lras
concluded and Brijendra Kumar Mishra ceased 10 be the rasslution profassional of the Company. The said Reseltion plan has besn imph thed by the Moniloing Comillee
and the management of the Company has been handed over t the RA by the Moniloring Committae w.e.f, 18t Gclober 2022

3 Parsuant to the Resoiubon Plan submilted by KLJ Rescurces Uimlted {raferred Lo as the *Resclution Applicant’) and fis appreval by e Hon'able Mational Company Law
Tribunat, vide their Order dated 10th Seplember 2022 for the Corparate insolvency of e Compary. the following conseguential impacls have bean gwean in 2ccordaice with
appraved rezokution plan £ Accounting Stardards -

- The axisling directors of the Company a3 on the dale of Order stand repkaced by the new Baard of Diraciors with sfsct from 27-06t-2022. As an Gate, the Board consists of
3 dirseiars {Mr Hemant Jain, #ir Harshvarghanbothra and Mr. Hanuman Jam}

- The equily share capilal of f earsiwhile promaters have been exinguiahad and tesh equity capital of Rs 10,00,00,000 has hesn itrodused
- ln respect of sufinguishment of batances of aperalipnal and financial creditors, post payment 35 per ihe resclution plan, the same is résogrised in exceptionat lem in

accordance with “indA3 " prescribed under section 133 of Ihe Comparkes Act, 2013 and accountng poiisias consistently followed by the Company and disclosed as in
“Exceptional #ems”.




LAKELAND CHEMICALSE {(INDIA) LITRAITED

Note 41. First-tima adoption of ing AS

These finandat statemerds, for the year ended 31 March 2023, are ihe first the company has prepared in accordance with Ind-AS. For periods up to and including the

yuar 31 March 2022, lhe company prapared ils financial statements in accordance with the indian GARF. incuding accounting slandards nalified undsr the companes
{Aneouniing Standards) Rules, 2006 {as amended),

Accordingly the company has prepared flinanciel stalements which comply with lnd-A5 applicabla for the periods on or aler the 31 March 2022, together with the
comparalive penod data a5 al and for the year ended 21 March 2022, 25 destribed in i stmmary of the signilicant accounting policies. Ir prepaning these financizd
slatemenis, the company opening balance sheet was prepared as al 1 April 2021, the company date of transition 1o Ind-AS This nole expizing the principal

adjusiments made by (he compainy in restating its Indian GAAF Tinarial statements. including the balance sheet as at 1 Agrl 2021 and the financial slatemens a5 at
and for the year ended 39 March 2022,

Exemptions applied

nd-AS 101 allows first time adopiers certain exemplions from he relrospective application of carlain requiraments under kd-A%
Company bas applied the following exemptions -

4- Estimates

The eslimaltes at 1 Apiil 2021 and at 31 March 2022 are consislent with those made for (he same dales in accardance wilh Indian GAATF {afler adiustments o reflect
any differences in accounling policies).

The astimales used by the Campany 10 present Ihese amounts in accordance with ind AS, reflect conditions al | Apdl 2021, the dale of iransition o bW-AS and a3 of
Ji March 2022,

2. Deemead Costs

Since there is no changs W funclional currency, the campany has elactad 10 continue wilh the previous GAAP Carying value of Propeny, Plant and Equipment as
recagnized in lhe previous SAAP financials as deemed cosl al the lransition dale.

3- Classification and measuremant of fnancial assets
Financial assats arg classifiod and measured on ihe basis of the condilions sxiling on the date of the teansition to Ing-AS

4- Investments in subsidisries and associates

Since company recegnised ils investment In subsidiaries and associales al cos! in separate financial stalements, company bas elecled o continue with fhe previous
GAAP carring ameunl a5 deemed casl at transilion date,

Reconciliation of Balance sheet on 1st Aprli 2821 {at the date of Transition)

{Amonnt I Lakhs]
Particuiars FOOL | LTHAN {GAAR) Adjustments IND AS
Motes
I. [ASSETS
1 |Non-currens assets
(ay Property, Plant and equipment . 1.3 3,407.939 16.31 3,824.30
[ty Capilal workdn-progress ’ - - R
(£} investment Properly - -
{(dy Goodwitt - .
(g3 Other Inlangible assals - - -
{f)  Intangible assets under development - .
(g Financlat Assels
{iy Investments - -
{iiy Trade Receivable - - -
iy Loans - -
{iv} Qlhers - - -
{hy Defwered lax asesls (et} 4,3 - 334.96 334,96
iy (her fon-current assets -] - - -
3,907 98 25187 425526
2 {Current assels
{2 inventories 45,65 4983
(1 Finencial Assels
{1} Investmonts - - -
{ii) Trade Receivables 35 44382 {000} 443,62
(il Cash and cash equivalents 3 B3 Bd {0.60} 6384
{iv} Bank Balances other than (i) above - - -
(v} Loans 3 48.03 {4803}
{vi} Others 3 - 16.96 16.96
{cy Curen Tax Assets (Met) - . -
(d) CHher current assels 15 1.28G.38 (259.62) 1,026,786
149191 (290,569} 160122
Total Assats] 5,799.90 6,58 3, 860.48
P
PN N R
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ECQUITY AnD LIABILITIES

Equity
iap Euguity Share Gapilal 467.83 461,83
ey Other Equily - -
(i} Reserve and Surplus 43 {15,536.89) 1631 {16, 820.50)
{15 37406 1631 {15 35867
Lizkilities
Kon-currant liabllities
ta} Financial Lisbiitias
(i) Borrowing 6,0804.77 - 6,094.77
¢iiy Trade Payabie - . )
{iiit Other financial ligbifies joiher than those specifisd in
ifem (), o be specified)Borrowing "
(b Provisions - - -
(o} Deferred tax iabiities (Net) _
() Olher non-curvent tatiliies 3 - - -
4,004 77 - 6,084.77
Currant listdlities
(a} Financial Liabikties
() Borrowing 3 10,224.61 {8.00) 10,224 814
{ii} Trade payables 3 38221 {0.00} 3BT
{iiiy Other financial lighites {ativer than those specified in
lem {'C) h ) )
(b DMher corent fiabilities 3.7 B65.93 130,63 296.56
{cy Provisions 37 166.86 {166.86) -
(d) Current Fax fiakilily (Nel} 37 - 80.51 80.51
15,0810 44,27 15,124.38
Tetal Equity and Llabiiitles 5,799,590 80.58 §840.48




LARELAMD CHEMICALS (INDIA) LIITED

Reconcitiation of Balarnce sheet on 3ist Margh 2022

(A iy Lakfis)

Particutars POt | inDtAN (GAAP) Adjustments iND AS
Motes
1. ATEETS
g Mon-currant asgets
(a) Propetty, Flant and eguipmant 1.3 3,338.85 - 3,338.9G
(by Capital work-in-progress - -
(¢} Investment Property -
[y Soodwill -
(g3 Other Intangible assets
{fl Intangible aszets under developmand -
{gy Financial Assets
D Investments
(i} Tratle Receivable
(i} Loans
(iv) Glhars -
{h} Deferred tax asaets {Met) 4,3 383.51 383.51
[ Olher nop-curtent assets [ -
333896 38351 3.723.47
2 Current assets
{a) Inventories 4985 46 85
fhy Financisl Assets
(i} Investments -
{it} Trade Receivables 35 5691 0.0% 56 .91
(i} Cash and cash equivaients k) 16.55 (0.00) 18.5%
{ivt Bank Batances olher than (i) above -
) Loans 3 44 .12 {4412} -
(vi) Cthers 3 12.21 13.21
{c) Current Tax Assets (Met) -
{d] Other curment asseis 3.5 1,3358.14 (30B8.42) 1.026.72
1,504.56 {330.33) 1,1685.23
Toaizl xseis 484352 a4 15 4 887. 70
L. EQUATY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
tal Equity Share Capitaf 461.83 461,83
(b} Other Equity
{i} Reserve ang Surplus 1,3 {16, 511.76) i0.00) (16,511.76)
{16,045.83) {000 (16,04%.93)
F 4 Liabiiities
Non-curveni Habilltles
(a) Financial Liabililies
(i} Borrowing 6,084 77 5,094.77
{iiy Trade Payabla
{iii} Cther financiat liabitiles {olher than -
(&) Provizions -
] Defered tax liabilides (Met) -
{3 Other non-current lizbillies -
8,004 77 6,094 77
Cureent llabifities
ta)  Fnancial Liabilities
{iy Borrowing 3 10,224 61 (0.00) 10,224 61
{ii} Trade payables 3 3,507.32 0,60 3,507.32
{iity Other financial liabililes {other than - -
{h) Other current Habilities kW 595 39 13513 1.030.52
{c] Provigions 3,7 174.36 {171.36}
(d} Current Tax {iability (Net) 3.7 - 80,42 00.42
14.758.68 44.18 14 642 86
Total Equity and Ligbilities 4.8432.62 44.18 | 4.887.70




EAMELAND CHERICALS (INDIAY LIMITED

Reconcifation of Statemant of Profit and Loss for the year onded 315t March 2022

{Rupaeos in Lafihs}

Farlicuiars

Foot
Motes

INDHAM {BAAF)

Bdjusimesis IND &S

VI,

Wik

Vil

Kl

All
XHI

XY

L

K.

Revenue .
Revenue frony operalions
Other income

(5.71) R {571}
1.47 - 1.47

Total Ingome {l + i}

(4.24) - (4.24}

Expenses:

Caost of Material Consumed

Furchase of Stack-In-Trade

Changes in inventores of Finished
Goods & Stogk in Trade

Employee Benefits Expenses

Finance Cosls

Deprecation and Amortization Expense
Cther Expenses

2587 - 2587

21.68 - 21.68

58534
102.48

585.34 -
10298 -

Total Expenses {iV).

735,57 - 735.57

Frofitfloss Before exceptonal items
and Tax{i - W}

Exceptional kems
Profit{Lass) before tax (V - Vi)

TaxX Gnpense:

Current tax

Deferred tax (net)

CER Expenses

ShortExcess) Provision for Earlier Year

Frafitf{ioss) for the period from
continuing operation (W1l « Yil)

Profitfitoss) from discontinued operations

Tax Expense of disconkinued operalions

Profitfiloss) from discontinued cperations
{after {ax) (X-x1)
Profitless) for the perlod {12+X}

Other Comprehiensive Income

ltems that wi? notf be reclassified (o
proftand loss

B (i} Hems that will not be reclassified 1o
Profit or Loss

i} ingome lay relating ta itermns thad will
nol be reclassified to Proftl or Loss

B (i) tems hat wil be reckassified © Peofd
of Loss

{iy Income tax refaling to items that will be
reclassified 1o Profil or Luss

Total Comprehensive income for the
period (X +XIV) (Comprehensive
profit and other comprenaensive
income for the period}

Earnings Pet Equity Share {for
Discontinued & Continuing
Oiperations):

Basic

Dilusted

(739.81) - (729.81)

{738.81) . (739.31}

{48 55) -

{691.26) - (691.26)

{65.28) - {65176}

[691.26] - 1591.26)

{(14.97) -
{1437 .

(14.57)
{14.97)

. ‘ o 2
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0 acRs

R n
s L




LAKELAND CHEMICALS (INDIAY LIMITED

Reconciliation of Tetal Fguity as at 31st March 2022 and 15t April 2021

[Rupees in Lalths)

. - Foot | 3Jist March ist Aprid
Particulars Notes|{ 2022 202+
Total Equity {Sharsholder's fund) as per previous GALP {16,045 93} {15,374.98}
Adjustments:
Change due to adjustment of grior year in Plani, Properi
and Equipment : ) 16.31
Total Equity {Shareholder’s fund) as per Ind AS {15,042.93) {15,358.67)
Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive income as at 31st March 2022
{Rupees in
Lakhs)
. X Foot | "3ist March
Particul
ars Notes 2022
Profit After Tax as per previous GAAP (591.26)
Profii Afler Tax as per ind AS {681.26)
Impact of Ind AS on th cash flow for the year ended 31st March 2022
(Rupess in Lakhs)
Particitlars . INDIAN GAAP! - Adjustments Ind AS
_ ‘i Notos ) o PR
Net Cash from Operating Activities g 49.56 - 49.56
Met Cash from invesling Activities & 1.42 - 112
Net Cash from Financing Activities 5] {1.00) {1.00}
Net (Decrease) [norease in Cash & Cash Equivalents 49,68 - 49.68
Cash & Cash Eguivalenis as at 1st April 2021 14.16 - 14.16
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31st March 2022 63.84 - 63.84




LAKELAND CHEMICALS {INDIA) LIMITED

Foot Naotes: -
1. Plani Property and Equipmest

Pam Property and Equipments are recognised as per Ind AS 16, Any Change due io prior penod errers is adjusted through Heserve and
Surplus

2. Non- Current Investmenis
Equity investments other than investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are recognised at Fair Value through Gther Comprehensive
Income as per Ind AS 109.

3. Regrorping and Re-classification
The previous GAAP figures have baen regrouped and reclasified to conform 10 Ind-AS presentation requirements.
4. Deferred Tax Asset

Defarred Tax Assets and Liability are regrouped and reclassfied from Clher Current Asssels and Other Current Liability. Deferred Tax Assels
are recegnisaed on net basis

§. Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable made in accordance with Ind AS 109 hence, there is no change in Trade Receivable.

A. Qther Currant Assets & Short Tarm Loan and Advances

Change is due o regrouping and raclassfied of Other Current Assets & Short Term f.oan and Advances to Other Current Assels and
Current Tazes

7. Other Current Liabiiity & Short Term Provision

Change is due 10 fegrouping and reclassfied of Shart term Provisions anrd Other Current Liabilily te Other Current llability and Current Taxes

8- Cash Flow Statement

There is no differance in net cash flow duning the financial year 2021-22 as per GAAP and ind AS, difference arising in operating, investing
and financing acliviies due to reciassification of kalance sheet items from GAAP to Ind AS,

Mote 42. Approval of financial statement
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors oh 24-May-2023

The accompanying notas o fhae s lone financial
statements '
< !

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

j( }0'\" . 1:\1»"”‘;‘“'
Ag per our repont of evenidate | ~OLe e ig‘;’f}i.
For D.P.Agarwal & Co. T X
Chartered Accountar Hemant Jain Harshvardhan bothra
Firm No.100088%F Director Director
AV/ D 088?8455 Dif 08533731
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D.P. AGARWAL 7
{Proprietor} \"\_ <

fdembership No.G35500
LIDIN: -
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Sanjatv Goya!
Chief Financiaj Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24-May-2023



